

judgment such instruction appears to be in the best interests of the school district and adults concerned;

(3) Join with boards of directors of other school districts or an educational service district pursuant to RCW 28A.21.086(3), as now or hereafter amended, or both such school districts and educational service district in buying supplies, equipment and services by establishing and maintaining a joint purchasing agency, or otherwise, when deemed for the best interests of the district, any joint agency formed hereunder being herewith authorized and empowered to issue interest bearing warrants in payment of any obligation owed: PROVIDED, HOWEVER, That those agencies issuing interest bearing warrants shall assign accounts receivable in an amount equal to the amount of the outstanding interest bearing warrants to the county treasurer issuing such interest bearing warrants: PROVIDED FURTHER, That the joint purchasing agency may cooperate with and jointly make purchases with private schools of ~~((educational))~~ supplies, equipment, and services so long as such private schools pay their proportionate share of the costs involved in such purchases; and

(4) Prepare budgets as provided for in chapter 28A.65 RCW.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 3. If any provision of this amendatory act or its application to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the act or the application of the provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected.

Passed the Senate April 16, 1979.

Passed the House April 10, 1979.

Approved by the Governor April 26, 1979.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State April 26, 1979.

---

## CHAPTER 67

[Senate Bill No. 2295]

### OBSOLETE FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS—DISESTABLISHMENT

AN ACT Relating to state government; disestablishing obsolete funds and accounts; amending section 18, chapter 169, Laws of 1935 and RCW 19.28.330; amending section 1, chapter 123, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. and RCW 43.22.500; amending section 43.79.330, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.79.330; amending section 43.82.090, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.82.090; amending section 71.02.390, chapter 25, Laws of 1959 and RCW 71.02.390; amending section 72.05.150, chapter 28, Laws of 1959 as amended by section 181, chapter 141, Laws of 1979 and RCW 72.05.150; amending section 3, chapter 63, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. as last amended by section 1, chapter 53, Laws of 1975 and RCW 74.13.106; amending section 4, chapter 63, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 74.13.109; amending section 11, chapter 63, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 74.13.130; amending section 1, chapter 332, Laws of 1959 as amended by section 7, chapter 207, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 76.04.510; amending section 8, chapter 207, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. as amended by section 4, chapter 24, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 76.04.515; amending section 9, chapter 233, Laws of 1951 and RCW 76.06.110; amending section 3, chapter 116, Laws of 1947 as last amended by section 1, chapter 12, Laws of 1963 and RCW 76.40.030; creating new sections; repealing section 28A.47.150, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 28A.47.150; repealing section 28A.47.160, chapter

223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 28A.47.160; repealing section 28A.47.425, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 28A.47.425; repealing section 28A.47.430, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 28A.47.430; repealing section 43.31.600, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.31.600; repealing section 43.31.610, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.31.610; repealing section 2, chapter 172, Laws of 1965 ex. sess. and RCW 43.83.072; repealing section 6, chapter 172, Laws of 1965 ex. sess. and RCW 43.83.080; repealing section 2, chapter 148, Laws of 1967 ex. sess. and RCW 43.83.092; repealing section 6, chapter 148, Laws of 1967 ex. sess., section 1, chapter 187, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 43.83.100; repealing sections 1 through 7, chapter 262, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 47.44.080 through 47.44.140; repealing section 47.60.070, chapter 13, Laws of 1961 and RCW 47.60.070; repealing section 47.60.180, chapter 13, Laws of 1961 and RCW 47.60.180; repealing section 47.60.190, chapter 13, Laws of 1961 and RCW 47.60.190; repealing section 72.01.160, chapter 28, Laws of 1959, section 151, chapter 141, Laws of 1979 and RCW 72.01.160; repealing section 72.08.070, chapter 28, Laws of 1959 and RCW 72.08.070; repealing section 1, chapter 230, Laws of 1949 and RCW 72.99.010; repealing section 2, chapter 230, Laws of 1949 and RCW 72.99.020; repealing section 3, chapter 230, Laws of 1949 and RCW 72.99.030; repealing section 4, chapter 230, Laws of 1949, section 36, chapter 278, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. and RCW 72.99.040; repealing section 5, chapter 230, Laws of 1949 and RCW 72.99.050; repealing section 6, chapter 230, Laws of 1949 and RCW 72.99.060; repealing section 1, chapter 299, Laws of 1957 and RCW 72.99.170; repealing section 2, chapter 299, Laws of 1957 and RCW 72.99.180; repealing section 3, chapter 299, Laws of 1957 and RCW 72.99.190; repealing section 5, chapter 299, Laws of 1957 and RCW 72.99.210; repealing section 6, chapter 299, Laws of 1957 and RCW 72.99.220; repealing section 74.08.375, chapter 26, Laws of 1959 and RCW 74.08.375; repealing section 21, chapter 164, Laws of 1971 ex. sess., section 19, chapter 183, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 74.20A.210; repealing section 77.12.180, chapter 36, Laws of 1955 and RCW 77.12.180; repealing section 1, chapter 279, Laws of 1955, section 1, chapter 62, Laws of 1957 and RCW 79.24.200; repealing section 2, chapter 279, Laws of 1955, section 2, chapter 62, Laws of 1957 and RCW 79.24.210; repealing section 3, chapter 22, Laws of 1951, section 3, chapter 279, Laws of 1955, section 3, chapter 62, Laws of 1957 and RCW 79.24.220; repealing section 4, chapter 22, Laws of 1951, section 4, chapter 279, Laws of 1955 and RCW 79.24.230; repealing section 5, chapter 279, Laws of 1955, section 4, chapter 62, Laws of 1957 and RCW 79.24.240; repealing section 6, chapter 279, Laws of 1955 and RCW 79.24.250; repealing section 7, chapter 22, Laws of 1951, section 3, chapter 187, Laws of 1953, section 7, chapter 279, Laws of 1955, section 5, chapter 62, Laws of 1957 and RCW 79.24.260; repealing section 8, chapter 279, Laws of 1955, section 6, chapter 62, Laws of 1957 and RCW 79.24.270; repealing section 7, chapter 62, Laws of 1957 and RCW 79.24.280; repealing section 8, chapter 233, Laws of 1951 and RCW 76.06.100; repealing section 10, chapter 233, Laws of 1951 and RCW 76.06.120; repealing section 1, chapter 140, Laws of 1953, section 7, chapter 107, Laws of 1979 and RCW 76.40.015; repealing section 13, chapter 140, Laws of 1953, section 8, chapter 107, Laws of 1979 and RCW 76.40.016; repealing section 5, chapter 136, Laws of 1973 and RCW 76.42.040; repealing section 6, chapter 136, Laws of 1973 and RCW 76.42.050; repealing section 4, chapter 299, Laws of 1957, section 38, chapter 278, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. and RCW 72.99.200; providing effective dates; and providing an expiration date.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington:

Section 1. Section 18, chapter 169, Laws of 1935 and RCW 19.28.330 are each amended to read as follows:

All sums received from licenses, permit fees, or other sources, herein shall be paid to the state treasurer (~~(as ex-officio custodian thereof)~~) and (~~(by him, as such custodian;)~~) placed in a special fund designated as the "electrical license fund," and by him paid out upon vouchers duly and regularly issued therefor and approved by the director of labor and industries or the director's designee following determination by the board of electrical examiners that the sums are necessary to accomplish the intent of chapter

19.28 RCW. The ~~((said))~~ treasurer ~~((as ex officio custodian of said fund))~~ shall keep an accurate record of payments into, or receipts of, said fund, and of all disbursements therefrom. ~~((Said fund shall be charged with its pro rata share of the cost of administering said fund to be determined by the director of labor and industries and the director of efficiency of this state:))~~

Sec. 2. Section 1, chapter 123, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. and RCW 43.22.500 are each amended to read as follows:

~~((There is hereby created within the state treasury a revolving fund to be known as the "department of labor and industries revolving fund", which shall be used by the director of))~~ The department of labor and industries, to defray the costs of printing, reprinting, or distributing printed matter issued by the department of labor and industries including, but not limited to, the matters listed in RCW 43.22.505~~((The department of labor and industries))~~, may charge a fee for such publications in an amount which will reimburse the department for the costs of printing, reprinting, and distributing such publications: PROVIDED, That every person subject to regulation by the department may upon request receive without charge one copy per year of any publication printed pursuant to RCW 43.22.505 whenever such person is affected by any statute, rule or regulation printed therein. All fees collected shall be deposited in the ~~((department of labor and industries revolving fund. In order to maintain an effective expenditure and revenue control the department of labor and industries revolving fund shall be subject in all respects to chapter 43.88 RCW but no appropriation shall be required to permit expenditures and payment of obligations from such fund))~~ state treasury to the credit of the appropriate fund or account.

Sec. 3. Section 43.79.330, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.79.330 are each amended to read as follows:

All moneys to the credit of the following state funds on the first day of August, 1955, and all moneys thereafter paid to the state treasurer for or to the credit of such funds, are hereby transferred to the following accounts in the state general fund, the creation of which is hereby authorized:

- (1) Capitol building construction fund moneys, to the capitol building construction account;
- (2) Cemetery fund moneys, to the cemetery account;
- (3) ~~((Commercial feed fund moneys, to the commercial feed account;~~
- ~~(4) Commission merchants fund moneys, to the commission merchants account;~~
- ~~(5) Electrical licenses fund moneys, to the electrical licenses account;~~
- ~~(6)) Feed and fertilizer fund moneys, to the feed and fertilizer account;~~
- ~~((7) Fertilizer, agricultural mineral and limes fund moneys to the fertilizer, agricultural mineral and limes account;~~
- ~~(8))~~ (4) Forest development fund moneys, to the forest development account;

~~((9))~~ (5) Harbor improvement fund moneys, to the harbor improvement account;  
~~((10))~~ Institutional building construction fund moneys, to the institutional building construction account;  
~~((11))~~ (6) Investment reserve fund moneys, to the investment reserve account;  
~~((12))~~ (7) Lewis river hatchery fund moneys, to the Lewis river hatchery account;  
~~((13))~~ (8) Millersylvania Park current fund moneys, to the Millersylvania Park current account;  
~~((14))~~ Nursery inspection fund moneys, to the nursery inspection account;  
~~(15)~~ State parks and parkways fund moneys, to the state parks and parkways account;  
~~(16)~~ Public school building construction fund moneys, to the public school building construction account;  
~~((17))~~ (9) Puget Sound pilotage fund moneys, to the Puget Sound pilotage account;  
~~((18))~~ (10) Real estate commission fund moneys, to the real estate commission account;  
~~((19))~~ (11) Reclamation revolving fund moneys, to the reclamation revolving account;  
~~((20))~~ Seed fund moneys, to the seed account;  
~~(21)~~ United States vocational education fund moneys, to the United States vocational education account;  
~~((22))~~ (12) University of Washington building fund moneys, to the University of Washington building account; and  
~~((23))~~ University of Washington medical and dental building and equipment fund moneys, to the University of Washington medical and dental building and equipment account;  
~~((24))~~ (13) State College of Washington building fund moneys, to the Washington State University building account(;  
~~(25)~~ Veterans rehabilitation council fund moneys, to the veterans rehabilitation council account; and  
~~(26)~~ School emergency construction fund moneys, to the public school building construction account)).

Sec. 4. Section 43.82.090, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.82.090 are each amended to read as follows:

~~((There is hereby created within the state treasury a special fund to be known as the "general administration construction fund" in which shall be deposited all moneys arising from the sale of such bonds, and all other moneys which may become available for carrying out the purposes of this chapter, provided, that from the moneys arising from the sale of such bonds there may be deposited in the general administration bond redemption fund~~

~~an amount equal to the interest accruing on such bonds during the estimated period of construction of the project for which such bonds are issued and for six months after the completion of such construction:))~~ All such bonds shall be designated as to the project for which they are issued and the proceeds thereof shall be used solely for that project, and for the payment of the expense incurred in the printing, issuance and sale of such bonds and to pay interest on such bonds for the period aforesaid.

The state finance committee is authorized to invest the proceeds from the sale of such bonds in short term securities of the United States government: PROVIDED, That such investment will not impede the orderly progress of the project for which the bonds were issued. The interest from such investments shall be deposited in the general administration bond redemption fund to the credit of the particular project involved.

Sec. 5. Section 71.02.390, chapter 25, Laws of 1959 and RCW 71.02-.390 are each amended to read as follows:

~~Advance remittances of ((such)) hospitalization charges ((may be held by the department in a suspense account for a period not to exceed ninety days in order to make prompt refunds in cases of overpayment. Moneys in such account shall be deposited in such bank or banks as the department may select, and any such depository shall furnish suitable surety bond or collateral for their safekeeping. Such funds))~~ required under RCW 71.02-.411 shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the general fund ~~((after being held for the above purpose)).~~

Sec. 6. Section 72.05.150, chapter 28, Laws of 1959 as amended by section 181, chapter 141, Laws of 1979 and RCW 72.05.150 are each amended to read as follows:

The department shall have power to acquire, establish, maintain, and operate "minimum security" facilities for the care, custody, education, and treatment of children with less serious behavior problems. Such facilities may include parental schools or homes, farm units, and forest camps. Admission to such minimum security facilities shall be by juvenile court commitment or by transfer as herein otherwise provided. In carrying out the purposes of this section, the department may establish or acquire the use of such facilities by gift, purchase, lease, contract, or other arrangement with existing public entities, and to that end the secretary may execute necessary leases, contracts, or other agreements. In establishing forest camps, the department may contract with other divisions of the state and the federal government; including, but not limited to, the ~~((state division of forestry))~~ department of natural resources, the state parks and recreation commission, the U.S. forest service, and the national park service, on a basis whereby such camps may be made as nearly as possible self-sustaining. Under any such arrangement the contracting agency shall reimburse the department for the value of services which may be rendered by the inmates of a camp ~~((and all such reimbursements shall be credited to a "forest camp revolving~~

fund", which fund is hereby created, and out of which funds may be disbursed towards the cost of operation and maintenance of the camp)).

Sec. 7. Section 3, chapter 63, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. as last amended by section 1, chapter 53, Laws of 1975 and RCW 74.13.106 are each amended to read as follows:

All fees paid for adoption services pursuant to RCW 26.32.115 and 74.13.100 through 74.13.145 shall be credited to ~~((an adoption support account, hereby created, in))~~ the general fund. Expenses incurred in connection with supporting the adoption of hard to place children shall be paid by warrants drawn against such ~~((account. The secretary may also from time to time transfer to such account from appropriations available to him for care of children in foster homes and child-caring institutions such sums as in his judgment will further the purposes set forth in RCW 74.13.100))~~ appropriations as may be available. The secretary may for such purposes, contract with any public agency or licensed child placing agency and/or adoptive parent and is authorized to accept funds from other sources including federal, private, and other public funding sources to carry out such purposes.

The secretary shall actively seek, where consistent with the policies and programs of the department, and shall make maximum use of, such federal funds as are or may be made available to the department for the purpose of supporting the adoption of hard to place children. The secretary may, if permitted by federal law, deposit federal funds for adoption support, aid to adoptions, or subsidized adoption in the ~~((adoption support account of the))~~ general fund and may use such funds, subject to such limitations as may be imposed by federal or state law, to carry out the program of adoption support authorized by RCW 26.32.115 and 74.13.100 through 74.13.145.

~~((The secretary may also deposit in such account and disburse therefrom all gifts and grants from any nonfederal source, including public and private foundations, which may be used for the program of adoption support authorized by RCW 26.32.115 and 74.13.100 through 74.13.145.))~~

Sec. 8. Section 4, chapter 63, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 74.13.109 are each amended to read as follows:

The secretary shall issue rules and regulations to assist in the administration of the program of adoption support authorized by RCW 26.32.115 and 74.13.100 through 74.13.145.

Disbursements from the ~~((adoption support account))~~ appropriations available from the general fund shall be made pursuant to such rules and regulations and pursuant to agreements conforming thereto to be made by the secretary with parents for the purpose of supporting the adoption of children in, or likely to be placed in, foster homes or child caring institutions who are found by the secretary to be difficult to place in adoption because of physical or other reasons; including, but not limited to, physical or

mental handicap, emotional disturbance, ethnic background, language, race, color, age, or sibling grouping.

Such agreements shall meet the following criteria:

(1) The child whose adoption is to be supported pursuant to such agreement shall be or have been a child hard to place in adoption.

(2) Such agreement must relate to a child who was or is residing in a foster home or child-caring institution or a child who, in the judgment of the secretary, is both eligible for, and likely to be placed in, either a foster home or a child-caring institution.

(3) Such agreement shall provide that adoption support shall not continue beyond the time that the adopted child reaches twenty-one years of age, becomes emancipated, dies, or otherwise ceases to need support, provided that if the secretary shall find that continuing dependency of such child after such child reaches twenty-one years of age warrants the continuation of support pursuant to RCW 26.32.115 and 74.13.100 through 74.13.145 the secretary may do so, subject to all the provisions of RCW 26.32.115 and 74.13.100 through 74.13.145, including annual review of the amount of such support.

(4) Any prospective parent who is to be a party to such agreement shall be a person who, while having the character, judgment, sense of responsibility, and disposition which make him or her suitable as an adoptive parent of such child, lacks the financial means fully to care for such hard to place child.

Sec. 9. Section 11, chapter 63, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 74.13.130 are each amended to read as follows:

If the secretary determines that a prospective adoptive parent or parents cannot, because of limited financial means, pay the cost or the full cost of an adoption proceeding for the adoption of a hard to place child who would be eligible for support under RCW 26.32.115 and 74.13.100 through 74.13.145, the secretary may authorize the payment from the (~~adoption support account~~) appropriations available from the general fund of all or part a reasonable attorney's fee to be determined by the superior court hearing the adoption and court costs. The clerk of the court shall furnish the secretary with a certified copy of the decree of adoption containing the finding as to such attorney's fee.

In evaluating any such prospective parent's ability to pay the secretary may use the same criteria for evaluating ability to pay which are to be used by him in waiving, reducing, or deferring fees pursuant to RCW 74.13.103 plus the burdens likely to be assumed by such parent even after adoption support is provided pursuant to RCW 26.32.115 and 74.13.100 through 74.13.145.

Sec. 10. Section 1, chapter 332, Laws of 1959 as amended by section 7, chapter 207, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 76.04.510 are each amended to read as follows:

~~((There is created a general contingency forest fire suppression account which shall be a separate account in the general fund. The account is)) Biennial general fund appropriations to the department of natural resources normally provide funds for the purpose of paying the emergency fire costs and expenses incurred and/or approved by the department in forest fire suppression or in reacting to any potential forest fire situation. When a determination is made that the fire started in the course of or as a result of a participating landowner operation, moneys expended from ~~((this account))~~ such appropriations in the suppression of such fire shall be recovered from the landowner contingency forest fire suppression account. The department shall transmit to the state treasurer for deposit in the general ~~((contingency forest fire suppression account))~~ fund any such moneys ~~((paid out of said account))~~ which are later recovered ~~((and said))~~. Moneys recovered during the biennium in which they are expended may be spent for purposes set forth ~~((herein))~~ in this section during the ~~((current))~~ same biennium, without reappropriation. ~~((Interfund loans to and from this account))~~ Loans between the general fund and the landowner contingency forest fire suppression account are authorized for emergency fire suppression. Such loans shall not exceed the amount appropriated for emergency forest fire suppression costs and shall bear interest at the then current rate of interest as determined by the state treasurer.~~

Sec. 11. Section 8, chapter 207, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. as amended by section 4, chapter 24, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 76.04.515 are each amended to read as follows:

There is created a landowner contingency forest fire suppression account which shall be a separate account in the general fund. This account shall be for the purpose of paying emergency fire costs incurred or approved by the department in the suppression of forest fires. When a determination is made that the fire was started by other than a participating landowner operation, moneys expended from this account in the suppression of such fire shall be recovered from ~~((the general contingency forest))~~ such general fund appropriations as may be available for emergency fire suppression ~~((account))~~ costs. Moneys spent from this account shall be by appropriation. The department shall transmit to the state treasurer for deposit in the landowner contingency forest fire suppression account any moneys paid out of said account which are later recovered, less reasonable costs of recovery, which moneys may be expended for purposes set forth herein during the current biennium, without reappropriation.

This account shall be established and renewed by a special forest fire suppression account assessment paid by participating forest landowners at rates to be established by the department, but not to exceed five cents per acre per year for such period of years as may be necessary to establish and thereafter reestablish a balance in said account of one million dollars. The assessments with respect to forest lands in western and eastern Washington



may differ to equitably distribute the assessment based on emergency fire suppression cost experience necessitated by participating landowner operations. Amounts assessed for this account shall be a lien upon the forest lands with respect to which the assessment is made, and may be collected as directed by the department in the same manner as forest patrol assessments. This account shall be held by the state treasurer who is authorized to invest so much of said account as is not necessary to meet current needs. Any interest earned on moneys from said account shall be deposited in and remain a part of the account, and shall be computed as part of the same in determining the balance thereof. Interfund loans to and from this account are authorized at the then current rate of interest as determined by the state treasurer, provided that the effect of the loan is considered for purposes of determining the assessments. Payment of emergency costs from this account shall in no way restrict the right of the department to recover costs pursuant to RCW 76.04.390 as now or hereafter amended, or other laws.

When the department determines that a forest fire was started in the course of or as a result of a participating landowner operation, it shall notify the forest fire advisory board of such determination. Such determination shall be final, unless, within ninety days of such notification, the forest fire advisory board or any interested party, serves a request for a hearing before the department. Such hearing shall constitute a contested case under chapter 34.04 RCW and any appeal therefrom shall be to the superior court of Thurston county.

Sec. 12. Section 9, chapter 233, Laws of 1951 and RCW 76.06.110 are each amended to read as follows:

All moneys collected under the provisions of RCW 76.06.070, together with such moneys as may be ~~((appropriated by the legislature for the purposes of this chapter;))~~ contributed by the federal government or by any owner or agent, shall be deposited ~~((by the supervisor in the forest insect and disease control))~~ in the state general fund ~~((; and the moneys therein hereby are made available to the board))~~ for the purposes of this chapter.

~~((All unexpended balances remaining in said fund shall continue to be available for the purposes of this chapter and shall not revert to the state general fund;))~~

Any additional revenue earmarked for the purposes of this chapter which was not anticipated in the budget adopted by the legislature may be deposited in the general fund and allotted as unanticipated receipts pursuant to RCW 43.79.270 through 43.79.282 as now existing or hereafter amended.

Sec. 13. Section 3, chapter 116, Laws of 1947 as last amended by section 1, chapter 12, Laws of 1963 and RCW 76.40.030 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) Before any person may engage in log patrol activities he must have an existing license from the state therefor. Before any license is issued the

applicant must apply to the department of natural resources on a form to be prescribed by said department. The application must contain the name and address of the applicant or applicants, the name, type, and size of equipment to be used, and the mailing address of the principal place of business at which address process may be served upon the applicant. Before any license may be issued the applicant must execute and file with said department, to be approved by it, a surety bond running to the state in the sum of five thousand dollars, conditioned that the applicant will comply with all the requirements of the laws of the state governing such activities, and will account for all stray logs taken into possession. Each application shall be accompanied by a remittance of one hundred dollars for each boat or truck to be used or operated in such activities by the licensee or agent. All licenses shall expire on June 30th following the date of issuance. The department shall issue each applicant a license and shall also issue distinctive stickers or other suitable devices for each piece of equipment listed in the application identifying it as engaged in log patrol activities. A fee of four dollars shall be paid for each pair of such stickers or devices used.

(2) All moneys received by the department under this chapter or chapter 76.42 RCW shall be deposited in the general fund.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 14. (1) Unless otherwise specified in this 1979 act, all assets remaining in accounts and funds disestablished by this act shall be transferred to the general fund.

(2) Any balance remaining in the account disestablished by section 18(7) of this 1979 act shall be transferred to the state building and higher education bond redemption fund.

(3) This section shall expire after the indicated action is completed and for record purposes on December 31, 1979.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 15. The special trust fund established in behalf of Geither Horn by the thirty-eighth legislature, chapter 21, Laws of 1963 ex. sess. (page 1429, Laws of 1963 and 1963 ex. sess.) is disestablished.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 16. The special account designated in section 1, chapter 146, Laws of 1963, as the Seattle armory fund is disestablished. Any funds remaining in this account shall be transferred to the general fund.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 17. Sections 15 and 16 of this 1979 act shall expire after the indicated action has been completed and for record purposes on December 31, 1979.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 18. The following acts or parts of acts are each repealed:

(1) Section 28A.47.150, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 28A.47.150;

(2) Section 28A.47.160, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 28A.47.160;

- (3) Section 28A.47.425, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 28A.47.425;
- (4) Section 28A.47.430, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 28A.47.430;
- (5) Section 43.31.600, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.31.600;
- (6) Section 43.31.610, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.31.610;
- (7) Section 2, chapter 172, Laws of 1965 ex. sess. and RCW 43.83.072;
- (8) Section 6, chapter 172, Laws of 1965 ex. sess. and RCW 43.83.080;
- (9) Section 2, chapter 148, Laws of 1967 ex. sess. and RCW 43.83.092;
- (10) Section 6, chapter 148, Laws of 1967 ex. sess., section 1, chapter 187, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 43.83.100;
- (11) Sections 1 through 7, chapter 262, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 47.44.080 through 47.44.140;
- (12) Section 47.60.070, chapter 13, Laws of 1961 and RCW 47.60.070;
- (13) Section 47.60.180, chapter 13, Laws of 1961 and RCW 47.60.180;
- (14) Section 47.60.190, chapter 13, Laws of 1961 and RCW 47.60.190;
- (15) Section 72.01.160, chapter 28, Laws of 1959, section 151, chapter 141, Laws of 1979 and RCW 72.01.160;
- (16) Section 72.08.070, chapter 28, Laws of 1959 and RCW 72.08.070;
- (17) Section 1, chapter 230, Laws of 1949 and RCW 72.99.010;
- (18) Section 2, chapter 230, Laws of 1949 and RCW 72.99.020;
- (19) Section 3, chapter 230, Laws of 1949 and RCW 72.99.030;
- (20) Section 4, chapter 230, Laws of 1949, section 36, chapter 278, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. and RCW 72.99.040;
- (21) Section 5, chapter 230, Laws of 1949 and RCW 72.99.050;
- (22) Section 6, chapter 230, Laws of 1949 and RCW 72.99.060;
- (23) Section 1, chapter 299, Laws of 1957 and RCW 72.99.170;
- (24) Section 2, chapter 299, Laws of 1957 and RCW 72.99.180;
- (25) Section 3, chapter 299, Laws of 1957 and RCW 72.99.190;
- (26) Section 5, chapter 299, Laws of 1957 and RCW 72.99.210;
- (27) Section 6, chapter 299, Laws of 1957 and RCW 72.99.220;
- (28) Section 74.08.375, chapter 26, Laws of 1959 and RCW 74.08.375;
- (29) Section 21, chapter 164, Laws of 1971 ex. sess., section 19, chapter 183, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 74.20A.210;
- (30) Section 77.12.180, chapter 36, Laws of 1955 and RCW 77.12.180;
- (31) Section 1, chapter 279, Laws of 1955, section 1, chapter 62, Laws of 1957 and RCW 79.24.200;
- (32) Section 2, chapter 279, Laws of 1955, section 2, chapter 62, Laws of 1957 and RCW 79.24.210;
- (33) Section 3, chapter 22, Laws of 1951, section 3, chapter 279, Laws of 1955, section 3, chapter 62, Laws of 1957 and RCW 79.24.220;
- (34) Section 4, chapter 22, Laws of 1951, section 4, chapter 279, Laws of 1955 and RCW 79.24.230;

(35) Section 5, chapter 279, Laws of 1955, section 4, chapter 62, Laws of 1957 and RCW 79.24.240;

(36) Section 6, chapter 279, Laws of 1955 and RCW 79.24.250;

(37) Section 7, chapter 22, Laws of 1951, section 3, chapter 187, Laws of 1953, section 7, chapter 279, Laws of 1955, section 5, chapter 62, Laws of 1957 and RCW 79.24.260;

(38) Section 8, chapter 279, Laws of 1955, section 6, chapter 62, Laws of 1957 and RCW 79.24.270; and

(39) Section 7, chapter 62, Laws of 1957 and RCW 79.24.280.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 19. The following acts or parts of acts are each repealed:

(1) Section 8, chapter 233, Laws of 1951 and RCW 76.06.100;

(2) Section 10, chapter 233, Laws of 1951 and RCW 76.06.120;

(3) Section 1, chapter 140, Laws of 1953, section 7, chapter 107, Laws of 1979 and RCW 76.40.015;

(4) Section 13, chapter 140, Laws of 1953, section 8, chapter 107, Laws of 1979 and RCW 76.40.016;

(5) Section 5, chapter 136, Laws of 1973 and RCW 76.42.040; and

(6) Section 6, chapter 136, Laws of 1973 and RCW 76.42.050.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 20. Section 4, chapter 299, Laws of 1957, section 38, chapter 278, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. and RCW 72.99.200 are each repealed.

This section shall take effect July 1, 1980.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 21. Sections 12, 13, and 19 of this 1979 act shall take effect on July 1, 1981.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 22. If any provision of this 1979 act or its application to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the act or the application of the provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected.

Passed the Senate April 17, 1979.

Passed the House April 10, 1979.

Approved by the Governor April 26, 1979.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State April 26, 1979.

---

CHAPTER 68

[Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2314]

SECURITIES

AN ACT Relating to securities; amending section 60, chapter 282, Laws of 1959 as last amended by section 3, chapter 130, Laws of 1979 and RCW 21.20.005; amending section 4, chapter 282, Laws of 1959 as last amended by section 2, chapter 84, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. and RCW 21.20.040; amending section 5, chapter 282, Laws of 1959 as last amended by section 3, chapter 84, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. and RCW 21.20.050; amending section 7, chapter 282, Laws of 1959 as last amended by section 4, chapter 84,